STATE
UNIVERSITY
SYSTEM

of FLORIDA

Board of Governors

AGENDA
Budget and Finance Committee
University of South Florida
Traditions Hall, Gibbons Alumni Center
Tampa, Florida
June 23, 2011
1:00 p.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Call to Order Governor Tico Perez

Approval of Committee Meeting Minutes Governor Perez
a. January 19, 2011
b. February 10, 2011

Clarification on the Implementation of UNF’s Student Governor Perez
Life and Services Fee

Consideration of 2011 Tuition Differential Fee Proposals Governor Perez

Notice of Intent to Amend Board Regulations: Mr. Tim Jones,
a. Regulation 7.001 ~ Tuition and Associated Fees Chief Financial Officer,
b. Regulation 7.003 - Fees, Fines and Penalties Board of Governors

Consideration of Collegiate License Plate Expenditure Mr. Jones
Modifications

Consideration of FIU's Self Insurance Program Ms. Vikki Shirley
Investment Policy General Counsel,
Board of Governors

Concluding Remarks and Adjournment Governor Perez







STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
Budget and Finance Committee
June 23, 2011

SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes of Meeting held January 19, 2011 and February 10,
2011

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION

Approval of minutes of meetings held on January 19, 2011 at the University of West
Florida, Pensacola and February 10, 2011 at the University of Central Florida, Orlando.

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF GOVERNORS ACTION

N/A

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Committee members will review and approve the minutes of the meeting held on
January 19, 2011 at the University of West Florida, Pensacola and February 10, 2011 at
the University of Central Florida.

Supporting Documentation Included: Minutes: January 19, 2011 & February 10, 2011

Facilitators/Presenters: Governor Perez






MINUTES
STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA
BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
UNIVERSITY OF WEST FLORIDA
PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
JANUARY 19, 2011

Mr. Beard, Vice Chair, convened the meeting of the Budget and Finance Committee at
2:00 PM. Mr. Perez, Chair, was present by phone. Members present were Ann Duncan,
Mori Hosseini, Dr. Stanley Marshall, John Rood, Norman Tripp, and Gallop Franklin.
Other Board members present were Ava Parker, Dean Colson, Charlie Edwards, Frank
Martin, John Temple, Gus Stavros, and Pat Frost.

1. Minutes of Prior Meetings

Mr. Beard presented the minutes of the November 4, 2010, meeting. There were no
changes to the minutes. Mr. Beard moved that the committee approve the minutes as
presented. Mr. Tripp seconded the motion, and members of the Committee concurred.

2. Financial Aid Qverview

Mr. Beard introduced Dr. Maribeth Ehasz, Chair of the Coundil of Student Affairs. Dr.
Ehasz presented an overview of financial aid. She spoke of the need to make students
aware of the financial aid that is available and how it is packaged.

3. Financial Aid Primer

Mr. Beard introduced Dr. Dan Cohen-Vogel. Dr. Cohen-Vogel explained the various
types of financial aid available and its sources. He stated that there are regulations in
place for financial aid relating to the administration, distribution and use of funds. He
stated that there have been many changes in financial aid in the past few years. He
provided a breakdown of the fees that an average student would pay in a year.

4, Florida State University Tuition Analvysis

Dr. Barron presented a financial aid tuition analysis as it applies to Florida State
University. He spoke of the importance of accessibility. He stated that there were two
pressing issues at FSU: the significant decrease in assistant professors and non-
competitive faculty salaries. To offset the budget shortfall, he suggested that some
revenue options would be additional state appropriations, on-line education, an
increase in out-of-state students, an increase in in-state enrollment, philanthropy, and a
tuition increase. Dr. Barron stated that a focus on retention rates would have a dramatic
impact on the cost of education to the state. Dr. Barron also spoke to having
predictability in tuition increases and eventually reaching the national average.



5. Institutional Process and Individual Student Cases

Mr. Beard introduced Ms. Anissa Agne, Director of Financial Aid at the University of
North Florida, and Ms. Karen Fooks, Director of Student Financial Services at the
University of Florida. They reviewed how financial aid is packaged for students, the
common packaging methodologies, and considerations in institutional aid strategies.
They also presented examples of packaging financial aid for high income, moderate
income and low income students.

6. “Empowering Communities to Help Students Know How to Go”

Mr. Beard introduced Mr. Braulio Colon, Interim Director of ENLACE. He spoke about
what communities are doing to advance access. Some of the initiatives are “College
Goal Sunday Florida,” and “Know How 2GO Florida.” He stated that he works with
many of the financial aid officers to help provide access for students. Mr. Franklin
inquired as to the impact Bright Futures has on minorities and students of limited
resources to attend college and the accessibility. Mr. Colon responded that when
standards are raised, minority students can rise to the challenge and reach those
requirements.

7. Concluding Remarks and Adjournment

Mr. Beard reminded the committee of the February 10, 2011, meeting at the University
of Central Florida in Orlando to review market tuition and fee proposals. The meeting
will begin at 10:00 AM. Recommendations will be made to the full board at the
February 17, 2011, conference call. He stated that we have received 8 fee proposals and
18 market rate tuition proposals. He also encouraged the student leader of the
respective university be present to speak.

Mr. Perez thanked the Committee for their work and Mr. Tim Jones for arranging the
presentations today. Having no further business, the meefing was adjourned at 4:40
PM.



MINUTES
STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA
BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA
ORLANDOQO, FLORIDA
FEBRUARY 10, 2011

Mr. Perez, Chair, convened the meeting of the Budget and Finance Committee at 10:00
AM. Members present were Dick Beard, Dr. Stanley Marshall, John Rood, Norman
Tripp, and Gallop Franklin. Other Board members present were Ava Parker, Dean
Colson, and Frank Martin.

1. Call to Order

Mr. Perez called the meeting to order and thanked the members for their attendance. He
announced that the meeting was originally scheduled to last until 2:00 PM, but given
the number of university proposals he expected the meeting to go later into the
afternoon.

Mr. Perez thanked the Governor for his budget recommendation that included no
further reductions to the university’s base budget. He reminded everyone that this is
just the beginning and the Legislature has a lot of work to do to craft the 2011-12
budget.

2. Student Life Facilities Survey Report

Mr. Perez called upon Mr. Tim Jones to present the Student Life Facilities Report. Mr.
Jones provided an overview of the report, including recommendations that would
request the Legislature to amend the statutory cap on the building and capital
improvement fee to allow up to a §1 per credit hour increase. Any proposals to increase
the fee would be submitted by the Board of Trustees to the Board of Governors for
consideration. The committee was requested to submit the report and recommendation
to the full Board to include the request in the 2011 legislative agenda.

There was discussion and support expressed by Mr. Franklin and Mr. Beard. Mr. Beard
moved that the committee recommend that the full Board consider adding this
statutory change to the legislative agenda. Mr. Rood seconded the motion and the
members of the committee concurred.

3. Fee Pronosals

Mr. Perez provided a PowerPoint presentation of the proposals that were submitted
along with the salient points from the Board Regulation 7.003. Mr. Perez also provided
the Committee with the filters that he will use as he evaluates each proposal. After each



universities fee proposal presentation, the Committee will decide whether to make a
recommendation to the full Board for approval or denial.

a. University of South Florida — Provost Ralph Wilcox and USF students:

1.

il.

Global Experience Fee — Provost Wilcox and the USF students
presented the need for the fee of $10.00 per semester. After discussion,
Mr. Rood moved that the fee be denied. Mr. Franklin seconded the
motion and the members of the Committee concurred with a vote of 4-
1. Mr. Beard, Mr. Rood, Mr. Tripp and Mr. Franklin voted in favor of
the motion, with Dr. Marshall opposing,.

Green Fee - Provost Wilcox and the USF students presented the need
for the fee of $1.00 per credit hour. After discussion, Mr. Beard moved
that the fee be approved. Mr. Franklin seconded the motion and the
members of the Committee concurred with a vote of 3-1. Mr. Beard,
Dr. Marshall, and Mr. Franklin voted in favor of the motion, with Mr.
Rood opposing.

b. New College of Florida - John Martin, VP of Finance & Administration and
NCF students:

i.

Green Fee — Mr. Martin and the NCF student presented the need for
the fee of $1.00 per credit hour. After discussion, Dr. Marshall moved
that the fee be approved. Mr. Franklin seconded the motion and the
members of the Commiittee concurred with a vote of 3-2. Mr. Beard,
Dr. Marshall, and Mr. Franklin voted in favor of the motion, with Mr.
Rood and Mr. Tripp opposing.

c. Florida Gulf Coast University — Joe Shepard, VP of Finance & Administration:

i.

Recreation Fee — Mr. Shepard presented the need for the new fee of
$4.49 per credit hour and a corresponding reduction in the Activity
and Service (A&S) Fee. There was significant discussion regarding the
creation of the new fee and the additional debt capacity created by
decreasing the A&S Fee. Mr. Rood moved that the Committee defer
action on the fee until general counsel had an opportunity to meet with
legislative staff to determine legislative intent. Dr. Marshall seconded
the motion and the Committee unanimously agreed.

d. University of West Florida - Jim Hurd, Associate VP of Student Affairs:

i

Student Life and Services Facility Fee - Mr. Hurd presented the need
for the new fee and read a statement from the student president in
support. The fee would be $4.00 per credit hour and $10.00 per
semester. The Committee discussed the creation of a new fee that is
similar to the building/capital improvement fee that is currently
capped in statute. The Committee questioned whether the new fee
circumvented the statutory cap and if that was the legislative intent
associated with allowing the Board to create a new fee. Mr. Tripp
moved that the fee be approved. Mr. Franklin seconded the motion.



The motion was defeated on a tie vote with Mr. Tripp, Mr. Franklin
and Dr. Marshall voting in favor and Mr. Perez, Mr. Beard, and Mr.
Rood voting against. Mr. Rood then made a motion to defer action on
the fee until general counsel had an opportunity to meet with
legislative staff to determine legislative intent. Mr. Tripp seconded the
motion and the Committee unanimously agreed.

ii.  Orientation Fee — Mr. Hurd presented the need to increase the
orientation fee from $35 to $50. After discussion, Dr. Marshall moved
that the fee increase be approved. Mr. Tripp seconded the motion and
the members of the Committee concurred with a vote of 4-1. Mr.
Beard, Dr. Marshall, Mr. Rood, and Mr Tripp voted in favor of the
motion, with Mr. Franklin opposing.

. University of North Florida - President John Delaney and UNF student

president:

i.  Student Life and Services Fee - President Delaney and the student
presented the need for the fee of $4.78 per credit hour. After
discussion, Mr. Rood moved that the fee be approved. Mr. Franklin
seconded the motion and members of the Committee concurred
unanimously.

Florida State University — Interim Provost Bob Bradley, Chief David Perry

and FSU student president:

i.  Student Safety and Security Fee - Provost Bradley presented the need
for the fee of $.97 per credit hour. After discussion, Mr. Beard moved
that the fee be approved. Dr. Marshall seconded the motion. The
motion to approve the fee failed on a tie vote with Mr. Beard, Dr.
Marshall, and Mr. Franklin voting in support and Mr. Tripp, Mr. Rood,
and Mr. Perez voting against.

. Florida International University - Provost Doug Wartzog and FIU student:

i.  Test Preparation Fee — Provost Wartzog presented the need for the fee
for the College of Law. After discussion, Mr. Franklin moved that the
tee be approved. Mr. Rood seconded the motion and the Committee
concurred unanimously.

Market Tuition Proposals

Mr. Perez moved to the last item on the agenda, university market tuition proposals,
and reminded the Committee that only graduate on-line courses or courses offered
through the continuing education program are eligible for consideration of market
tuition rates.

a. Florida International University — Provost Wartzog and Dr. Joyce Elam, Dean:

i.  Provost Wartzog presented four market tuition proposals and
indicated that the fifth proposal regarding Public Health was being
withdrawn. The four proposals presented included Master degrees in



Business, Global Governance, Accounting and Business
Administration. After discussion, Mr. Beard moved that the market
tuition proposals be approved. Mr. Rood seconded the motion and the
Committee concurred unanimously.

b. Florida State University — Interim Provost Bradley:

i.

Interim Provost Bradley presented five market tuition proposals. The
proposals included Master degrees in Social Work, Library and
Information Studies, Management with a major in Risk Management &
Insurance, Management Information Studies, and Business
Administration. After discussion, Dr. Marshall moved that the market
tuition proposals be approved. Mr. Franklin seconded the motion and
the Committee concurred unanimously.

¢. University of Florida — Provost Joe Glover:

i.

Provost Glover presented five market tuition proposals. The proposals
included Master degrees in Outreach Engineering, Business
Administration and Pharmaceutical Sciences and Doctorate degrees in
Audiology and Pharmaceutical Sciences Clinical. After discussion, Mr.
Rood moved that the market tuition proposals be approved. Dr.
Marshall seconded the motion and the Committee concurred
unanimously,

d. University of Central Florida — Diane Chase, Executive VP for Academic
Affairs:

i.

Dr. Chase presented three market tuition proposals. The proposals
included a Masters degree in Business Administration and two
professional Master degrees in Management and Real Estate. After
discussion, Governor Beard moved that the market tuition proposals
be approved. Mr. Rood seconded the motion and the Committee
concurred unanimously.

Concluding Remarks and Adjournment

Mzr. Perez thanked the Committee for their work and said a decision would be
forthcoming on whether to bring the Committees recommendations to the full Board
during the February 17 conference call or waiting until the March 24 meeting in
Tallahassee. Having no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:10 PM.



STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA
BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Budget and Finance Committee
June 23, 2011

SUBJECT: UNF Student Life and Services Fee

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION

Clarify that the new fee approved by the Board in March shall be no more than 5
percent of tuition.

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF GOVERNORS ACTION

Article IX, Section 7, Florida Constitution and Regulation 7.003

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

In March the Board approved UNF’s Student Life and Services Fee to be implemented
with the fall 2011 term. There is an ambiguity as to whether the fee was presented and
approved as a $4.78 per credit hour fee or a fee set at 5 percent of base tuition. It was
UNF's intention, and approved by their Board of Trustees, that the fee be no more than
5 percent of tuition.

A clarification that this fee is indexed to tuition will avoid UNF from having to come
back to this Committee, and ultimately the Board, for any increases to the fee whenever
base tuition increases. As required in Regulation 7.003, UNF must establish a fee
committee that will make recommendations to the President and Board of Trustees on
the fee usage and increases to the fee whenever base tuition increases.

Supporting Documentation Included: None

Facilitators/Presenters; Governor Perez






STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
Budget and Finance Committee
June 23, 2011

SUBJECT: 2011-12 Tuition Differential Fees

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION

Review and take action on universities’ request to implement a tuition differential fee
increase of 7 percent effective with the fall 2011 semester.

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF GOVERNORS ACTION

Article IX, Section 7, Florida Constitution and Regulation 7.001

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Pursuant to Regulation 7.001 (13) university boards of trustees may submit tuition
differential fee proposals to this committee for consideration. The aggregate sum of
tuition and the tuition differential fee cannot exceed 15 percent of the total charged for
these in the preceding fiscal year. The 2011 General Appropriations Act (SB 2000)
approved an 8§ percent increase in the base undergraduate tuition. Thus, university
Boards of Trustees can only request a tuition differential fee increase up to 7 percent.

Each Board of Trustees has approved and submitted a request to implement a tuition
differential fee increase of 7 percent effective with the fall 2011 semester.

The committee will make a recommendation to the full Board on each university’s
proposal. If the Board would deny any proposal, the Board of Trustees may file an
appeal with the Tuition Appeals Committee pursuant to Regulation 7.001(13)(e).

Supporting Documentation Included: 1. Tuition differential requests located within
the university work plans
2. Overall Observations
3. 2010-11 Summary tuition differential
4. 2011-12 Summmary tuition differential

Facilitators/Presenters: Governor Perez






Tuition Differential Fee
Overall Observations

e Each university is requesting 7 percent; this is in addition to the 8 percent base
tuition authorized by the legislature. This will be the 3w year in a row the
maximum tuition differential is requested by each university.

e The Legislature, in building the 2011-12 General Appropriations Act, assumed
that every university would increase to the maximum 7% tuition differential.

» The national average for 2010-11 is $7,605. For 2008-09 Florida ranked 49t and in
2010-11 48%,

e Pursuant to Board Regulation 7.001, the sum of tuition and fees cannot exceed
the national average undergraduate tuition and fees. The College Board annual
tuition and fee survey is the benchmark used to compare Florida to the national
average. SUS universities were well under the national average with a low of
$4.470 (NCF) and a high of $5,237 (FSU).

s For 2011-12, a total of $144.5 million is estimated to be expended; approximately
$39 million will be used for need-based financial aid and the balance for
undergraduate education.

e For 2011-12, universities are instituting various initiatives with the resources; e.g.
hiring and retaining faculty, improving advising, and adding course sections.

» A7 percent tuition differential increase ranges from $8.62 to $10.00 per credit
hour. If approved, the total tuition differential will range from $21.45 to $32.00
per credit hour.

2010-11 Tuition

2011-12 Incremental

& Differential Change 2011-12 Tuition & Differential
{per credit hour) {per credit hour)
8% Base 7% Tuition Total Total
Legislative | Differential Base Tuition

Total Increase Increase Tuition | Differential | Total
FAMU $108.47 $7.65 $8.62 $103.32 $21.42 | $124.74
FAU $108.47 $7.65 $8.62 $103.32 $21.42 | $124.74
FGCU $108.47 $7.65 $8.62 $103.32 $21.42 | $124.74
FIU $117.67 $7.65 $10.00 $103.32 $32.00 | $135.32
FSU $117.67 $7.65 $10.00 $103.32 $32.00 | $135.32
NCF $108.47 $7.65 $8.62 $103.32 521.42 | 5124.74
UCF $111.55 $7.65 $9.08 $103.32 $24.96 | $128.28
UF $117.67 $7.65 $10.00 $103.32 $32.00 | $135.32
UNF $108.47 $7.65 $8.62 $103.32 $21.42 | $124.74
USE-Tampa $117.67 $7.65 $10.00 §103.32 $32.00 | $135.32
USF-5a.r/Man. $5108.47 $7.65 $8.62 $103.32 $21.42 | $124.74
USF-5t, Pete, $108.47 37,65 $5.62 $103.32 $21.42 | $124.74
USE-Polytechnic $108.47 $7.65 $8.62 $103.32 $21.42 | $124.74
UWEF $108.47 $7.65 $8.62 $103.32 $21.42 | $124.74

10



‘Pie [RIDURUL PIsSEq Paau spremo; papuadxs a19M SHOHRGUON0D IBI0 JO 940 1ol poyxodax 10

l1sg'cs {coz$ l€s2'0T 8TT'298°78%  |088'6LT'FCS (SPT/L89°€9$ |

0051 88% ¥5G 07 86£°C50°7$ 108779 L6G°0EV TS AMN
000°1% 0Sz$ zL €7 e (74 c60'08€$ 0P VLIS G68'S9T5% onnpPaAlog-1s0
000°T$ 052$ €T 91 3 / 092878 68 156% [20°98¢€5$ 019, 15-4501
000'1$ 057 LE1 (52 17 1179578 L8S'ST1S ¥29'LT1S “ue /Tes-150)
788°C$ 091% 957’e £97 81 0F 768'T78CCIS  |e67P82°€S  1665°009'8% edurey-15N
050'T1$  [ve$ ¢ 00 Move 000 | — 9¢ TP0'8¢0'cs  1TIF'806% 0€96LL'TS ANQ
L££'6% 11$ cO¥'L CCo’0e8 01 — CCo'0E8 0TS A0
00S'1$ cc1s 019'c 1SS Tes 666724848 1BIESIT LIS 0N
000°S$ c/6% o ¢ 3 1921924 01v'8/8% 1687816 ADN
08/°c 0LIS 9617 Y01 /7 cea'sec’ss  lrIgsres [er2'99ges nsd
05/$ 98% 0TS €/G cc g POCTPRCIS  [8982CC TS [96F 16766 [RIF
016'cS 66% ¢/, 98T ¥ ot 10628 6F094% VRO IGLTS noo4
000°L$ 000°1$ 928 005 6 </ 668'205cs  l0/£259'1$  lera’ecg’es nvd
000°S$ 002$ 8% c8s 61E v /56T 1/8TY88% £EE°C90°TS YNV

papiemy | papiemy [spiemy pry [l pases /pappyv| pouresy paureiey 8301, %0€ - PTV %0Z Aysiaamun
WNWIEXRIA | WUNWIUIA | [EIDURUL] SUOI}BG /paaiy /panyy Lymoey paseg peaN| -uogeonpy

JO oqumny 95IN0)) SI0STADY /siunlpy sjenpeiSopun

UOLEULIOFU] YD)

samprpuadxyy [enpvy

Areunung [eHUIIRIII WOHINT, T10Z-010T

WAISAG AJISIDAIUN) Bjelg

11



wmn ﬁw

mﬂ« ey

%

15 T09C L2055

1"
e

l 041" hwm mcﬁw

mm_ w&.mm K wncm
AR
mm An.mo m@ nN SCE IS N@ wmm mm M% ﬁwwmw&
S0t i

M\.m«w@

S Toea e e SISO
loczizss [rvets [o

12

Hm £65 &w @mm Rm hm Mm oiz 1S a w gpR’CE |8 % 9" ﬁa T 014 %ﬁ g’ @«m o5 | e’ :a m ma 9 m% E!
| TR v LD s ThavaIs [er s T e oS Joor s A LTSS PO/ EI0 [t
mm. PS1es 5 LIS |or8'zs6 mqw 056295 09" omo 75 gﬁ m moa 00 ﬁm ﬁ ; L9118 %% g6 |11 No 8 !
20 T8 o veu b T | IR TS e 10E6206, I 6a0/v [ ShI T 00 AT T
S09°TET'SS ces mmm 5 928 N% mw 08818 |0z ﬁ& a bLVTIS ﬁ m 8& ﬁﬁ E Vg %Hm w ﬁm /9665 [T1 Hm co g
ESaAt T P Rmm e e s g £ S8 fivee 75 E760/00 |
197'985°C5  |8/8°5/9'1S @wm 016cs BOUSSES |0TTRISS |PLYTIS |Th 128 4% moa _ No.wm 5948 OUPSTES 1ZF 9018 |08 mwm L9°G68
Fei01, 9%0€ ~ PIV 540/, SINOY | SINOY Tei0], |[enusiagi(l | uoming ¥ aseswdu] asedu] MW SIMOH | [®I0L |{enuaXelji( i uomny | a3
paseg paay | - ucieINpy P NP OE uonmy |sseq jeso)r JE [enusrag | aanersiSe Mpar) 0 uONINE aseqg |[[eacaddy
| 0g 103 |03 [el0L, e, B uvonmng o, | osegyg MIoj eIl 104n
3seardu]
samupuadxy (pa1011 ssapim Inoy §pald xad sjunoue) Aduey) (pajou ssajun moy 3Ipam 124 sjunotue)
pajenrysy [PHUBIFII(] UORN], 9 WL L, ZI-L10T [RIURNEIET] TI-TT0T [EIIUSIBL (] WOINT, 3 UoIInY, TI-0T02

Areunung [enussRIIg WONM, ZT-T10T
ura)sAs ANISIDAL[] dJe)g







STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
Budget and Finance Committee
June 23, 2011

SUBJECT: Regulation 7.001 ~ Tuition and Associated Fees

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION

Approve public notice of intent to amend Regulation 7.001.

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF GOVERNORS ACTION

Article IX, Section 7, Florida Constitution and Board Regulation Development
Procedure

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

This regulation has been amended to codify the actions taken by the Legislature during
the 2011 session to increase undergraduate base tuition from $95.67 to $103.32, an 8
percent increase. In addition, pursuant to Senate Bill 2150, a modification has been
made to the tuition differential component of the regulation that will allow excess
revenue for need-based financial aid to be spent on other undergraduate education if all
tuition and fee needs of resident Pell Grant students have been met.

This regulation has been shared with the universities.

Supporting Documentation Included: Regulation 7.001 - Tuition and Associated Fees

Facilitators/Presenters: Tim Jones

13






7.001 Tuition and Associated Fees

(1) All students shall pay tuition and associated fees, unless waived pursuant to
Regulation 7.008, as authorized by the Board of Governors or its designee.

(2) Tuition shall be defined as the basic fee assessed to students for enrollment in
credit courses at any of the state universities. Non-resident tuition shall be
defined as the basic fee and out-of-state fee assessed to non-resident students for
enrollment in credit courses at any of the state universities. The out-of-state fee is
the additional fee charged to a non-resident student. The non-resident tuition
must be sufficient to offset the full instructional cost of serving the non-resident
student. Calculations of the full cost of instruction shall be based on the
university average of the prior year’s cost of programs using the expenditure
analysis.

| (3) Effective with the Fall 20118 term, undergraduate tuition shall be $103.3295.67
per credit hour.

{4) Each university board of trustees may set tuition for graduate, including
professional, programs.

(5) Bach university board of trustees may set out-of-state fees for undergraduate
and graduate, including professional, programs.

(6) Associated fees shall include the following fees and other fees as authorized
by the Board of Governors:

(a} Student Financial Aid Fee;

(b) Capital Improvement Fee;

{c) Building Fee;

(d) Health Fee;

(e) Athletic Fee;

(f} Activity and Service Fee;

{g) Non-Resident Student Financial Aid Fee, if applicable;

(h) Technology Fee; and

(i) Tuition Differential.

(7) Students shall pay tuition and associated fees or make other appropriate
arrangements for the payment of tuition and associated fees (installment
payment, deferment, or third party billing) by the deadline established by the
university for the courses in which the student is enrolled, which shall be no later
than the end of the second week of class.

14



(8) Registration shall be defined as the formal selection of one or more credit
courses approved and scheduled by the university and tuition payment, partial
or otherwise, or other appropriate arrangements for tuition payment (installment
payment, deferment, or third party billing) for the courses in which the student is
enrolled as of the end of the drop/add period.

(9) Tuition and associated fees liability shall be defined as the lability for the
payment of tuition and associated fees incurred at the point at which the student
has completed registration, as defined above.

(10) Tuition and associated fees shall be levied and collected for each student
registered in a credit course, unless provided otherwise in Board regulations.

(11) Each student enrolled in the same undergraduate college-credit course
more than twice shall pay tuition at 100 percent of the full cost of instruction and
shall not be included in calculations of full-time equivalent enrollments for state
funding purposes. Students who withdraw or fail a class due to extenuating
circumstances may be granted an exception only once for each class pursuant to
established university regulations. The university may review and reduce these
fees paid by students due to continued enrollment in a college-credit class on an
individual basis contingent upon the student’s financial hardship. For purposes
of this paragraph, first-time enroliment in a class shall mean enrollment in a class
fall semester 1997 or thereafter. Calculations of the full cost of instruction shall be
based on the system-wide average of the prior year’s cost of undergraduate
programs in the state university system using the expenditure analysis.

(12) Each FAMU student enrolled in the same college-preparatory class more
than twice shall pay 100 percent of the full cost of instruction to support
continuous enrollment of that student in the same class, and shall not be
included in calculations of full-time equivalent enrollments for state funding
purposes. Students who withdraw or fail a class due to extenuating
circumstances may be granted an exception only once for each class pursuant to
established university regulations. Calculations of the full cost of instruction
shall be based on FAMU’s average of the prior year’s cost of remedial
undergraduate programs using the expenditure analysis and adjusted by the
percentage budget increase in the current year appropriation.

(13) A university board of trustees may submit a proposal for a block tuition
policy to the budget committee for consideration by the committee during a
November meeting. The proposed block tuition policy for resident
undergraduate or graduate students shall be based on the per-credit hour tuition
amount. The proposed block tuition policy for nonresident undergraduate or
graduate students shall be based on the per-credit-hour tuition and out-of-state

15



fee amount. The block tuition policy can only be implemented beginning with
the fall term.

{a) The proposal shall be submitted in a format designated by the Chancellor

and include at a minimum:
1. An explanation of the process used to determine the block tuition
ranges.
2. An explanation of how the university will ensure that sufficient courses
are available to meet student demand.
3. A description of how the policy is aligned with the mission of the
university.
4. A declaratory statement that the policy does not increase the state’s
fiscal liability or obligation.
5. An explanation of any proposed restrictions, limitations, or conditions
to be placed on the policy. '
6. A clear statement that any student that is a beneficiary of a prepaid
tuition contract, purchased prior to the first fall term in which the block
tuition is implemented, will not be included in any block tuition policy
and will be billed on a per-credit-hour basis. The university shall work
with the Florida Prepaid Board to determine how block tuition will be
paid for beneficiaries of prepaid tuition contracts after implementation of
block tuition. The university shall report the final resolution to the budget
committee.
7. An estimation of the economic impact that implementation of the policy
will have on the university and the student by identifying the incremental
revenue the university anticipates collecting if this policy is implemented
and the financial impact on the typical student subject to the policy.
8. A description of any outcome measures that will be used to determine
the success of the policy, including but not limited to, time to degree,
course load impact, and graduation rates.

(b) The Board of Governors will act upon the budget committee
recommendation at the next scheduled meeting. If a university board of
trustees’ proposal is denied, within five days, the university board of trustees
may request reconsideration by the Board’'s Tuition Appeals Committee,
which shall consist of the Chair of the Board and the Chair of each Board
committee. The Tuition Appeals Committee will meet within ten days after
the Board of Governors’ denial to consider a university board of trustees
request for reconsideration.

{c) Every five years, the university board of trustees shall review the policy to
determine if it has met its intended outcomes and whether the policy should

16



be continued or modified. The university board of trustees shall submit its
findings to the Board.

(14) Asa component of the annual university Work Plan, a board of trustees
may submit a proposal to the budget committee of the Board of Governors by
May 31 of each year to establish an increase in the undergraduate tuition
differential to be implemented with the fall academic term. The tuition
differential shall promote improvements to undergraduate education and
provide financial aid to undergraduate students who have financial need.
University boards of trustees shall have flexibility in distributing need-based
financial aid awards according to university policies and Board of Governors’
regulations.

(2} The aggregate sum of tuition and tuition differential can not be increased
by more than 15 percent of the total charged for the aggregate sum of these
fees in the preceding fiscal year,
1. The tuition differential may be assessed on one or more undergraduate
courses or all undergraduate courses and may vary by campus or center
location.
2. The sum of undergraduate tuition and associated fees per credit hour
may not exceed the national average undergraduate tuition and fees at
four-year degree granting public postsecondary educational institutions.
3. Students having prepaid contracts in effect on July 1, 2007, and which
remain in effect, are exempt from paying the tuition differential.
4. Students who were in attendance at the university before July 1, 2007,
and maintain continuous enrollment may not be charged the tuition
differential.

(b) The university board of trustees’ proposal shall be submitted in a format
designated by the Chancellor, and include at a minimum;
1. The course or courses for which the tuition differential will be assessed.
2. The amount that will be assessed for each tuition differential proposed.
3. The purpose of the tuition differential.
4. Identification of how the revenues from the tuition differential will be
used to promote improvements in the quality of undergraduate education
and to provide financial aid to undergraduate students who have financial
need.
a. For the purposes of the following subsection,
i. “Financial aid fee revenue” means financial aid fee funds
collected in the prior year.
ii. “Private sources” means prior-year revenue from sources
other than the financial aid fee or the direct appropriation

17



for financial assistance provided to state universities in the
General Appropriations Act.
b. At least thirty percent of the revenue shall be expended to
provide need-based financial aid to undergraduate students to
meet the cost of university attendance. If the entire tuition and fee
costs of resident students who have applied for and received Pell
Grant funds have been met and the university has excess funds
remaining, the university may expend the excess portion on
undergraduate education.
i. Universities shall increase undergraduate need-based aid
over the prior year by at least thirty percent of the tuition
differential.
ii. This expenditure shall not supplant the amount of need-
based aid provided to undergraduate students in the
preceding fiscal year from financial aid fee revenues, the
direct appropriation for financial assistance provided to state
universities in the general appropriations act, or from
private sources.
iii. If a university’s total undergraduate need-based awards
does not meet or exceed the sum of the prior year’s
undergraduate need-based awards plus thirty percent of
new tuition differential funds, the university may still be
considered in compliance. However, the university shall
provide detailed documentation demonstrating that the
difference is attributed to a decrease in financial aid fee
collections (Regulation 7.003(18%)), tuition differential
collections, the direct appropriation for student financial
assistance in the General Appropriations Act, and/or a
decrease in foundation endowments that support
undergraduate need-based aid awards.
c. The remaining revenue shall be expended on undergraduate
education.
5. Indicate how the university will monitor the success of the tuition
differential in achieving the purpose for which the tuition differential is
being assessed.

{c) The budget committee will examine data gathered as part of the
University Annual Reports instituted pursuant to Regulation 2.002 to
inform members’ deliberations regarding institutional proposals for tuition
differential increases. At a minimum, the committee will review:

1. Undergraduate retention and graduation rates.

2. Percentage of students graduating with more than 110 percent of the

hours required for graduation.

18



3. Licensure pass rates for completers of appropriate undergraduate
programs.

4. Number of undergraduate course offerings.

5. Percentage of undergraduate students who are taught by each
imstructor type.

6. Average salaries of faculty who teach undergraduate courses.

7. Undergraduate student-faculty ratio.

8. Other university specific measures identified by the boards of trustees
pursuant to subparagraph (14)(b)5.

9. Number of need-based financial aid awards provided, average award,
and median award.

(d) The budget committee shall review each proposal and advise the
university board of trustees of the need for any additional information or
revision to the proposal. The budget committee will make a
recommendation to the Board of Governors at the next scheduled meeting.

(e) The Board of Governors will act upon the budget committee
recommendation at the next scheduled meeting. If a university board of
trustees’ proposal is denied, within five days the university board of
trustees may request reconsideration by the Beard's Tuition Appeals
Committee, which shall consist of the Chair of the Board and the Chair of
each Board committee. The Tuition Appeals Committee will meet within
ten days after the Board of Governors denial to consider a university board
of trustees request for reconsideration.

(f) Bach university board of trustees that has been approved to assess a
tuition differential shall submit the following information to the Board of
Governors General Office in a format and at a time designated by the
Chancellor, so that such information can be incorporated into a system
report that will be submitted to the Governor and Legislature by January 1.
1. The amount of tuition differential assessed.
2. The course or courses for which the tuition differential was assessed.
3. Total revenues generated.
4. Number of students eligible for a waiver as outlined in Regulation
7.008(20), number of these students receiving a waiver, and the value of
these waivers,
5. Detailed expenditures (submitted as a part of the August operating
budget).
6. Detailed reporting of financial aid sources and disbursements sufficient
to meet the requirements in subparagraph (14)(b)4.
7. Data on indicators outlined in subparagraph (14)(c).

19



{g) Universities must maintain the need-based financial aid revenue
generated from the tuition differential in a separate Education and General
account, with the revenue budget in the Student and Other Fee Trust Fund.
(h) If, after approval by the Board of Governors, a university determines
that modifications need to be made to the monitoring and implementation
of the proposed undergraduate improvement programs, the university shall
notify the Chancellor.

(15) A university board of frustees may submit a proposal for market tuition
rates for graduate-level courses offered online or through the university’s
continuing education unit when such courses constitute an approved degree
program or college credit certificate program. Proposals shall be submitted to the
budget committee for consideration by the committee during a November
meeting.

(a) Proposals to charge market tuition rates for degree programs and college

credit certificate programs shall be considered by the Board only if

documentation is provided that demonstrates:
1. The programs have been approved in accordance with Regulation
8.011 and have established one or more separate market tuition rate
student cohorts, each of which can be tracked for administrative and
reporting purposes.
2. The programs do not lead to initial licensing or certification for
occupational areas identified as state critical workforce need in the
State University System of Florida Strategic Plan, 2005-2013, Areas of
Programmatic Strategic Emphasis, as amended in 2009. A university
may request establishment of market tuition rates for such programs
for non-residents if such programs do not adversely impact
development of other programs for Florida residents. A university,
upon a written request for a special exception from the Chancellor,
may submit a proposal for market tuition rate for a program leading to
initial licensing or certification in a state critical workforce need area if
it can be demonstrated to increase the number of graduates in the
state.
3. 'The program admission and graduation requirements shall be the same
as similar programs funded by state appropriations.

(b) If approved by the Board, the university shall operate these programs for
a pilot period in order to collect sufficient information to determine the merit
and success of market tuition rate courses. During the pilot period, the Board
shall approve no more than five new graduate-level degree programs or
college credit certificate program proposals per academic year. After three
years, the university shall present its findings to the Board budget committee.

20



The university findings shall include, but not be limited to, program
enrollments, degrees produced, and enrollments in similar state funded
programs. The budget committee will then make any appropriate
recommendations to the Board for changes of market tuition rates programs.

(c) The proposal for market tuition rate programs shall be submitted in a
format designated by the Chancellor and include at a minimum:
1. A description of the program and its compliance with the
requirements outlined in (15)(a).
2. An explanation of the process used to determine the market tuition
rate and the tuition at similar programs from at least five other
institutions, including both private and public.
3. A description of similar programs offered by other state university
system institutions.
4. An estimate of the market tuition rate to be charged over the next
three years. Any annual increase shall be no more than 15 percent over
the preceding year.
5. A description of how offering the proposed program at market
tuition rate is aligned with the mission of the university.
6. An explanation and declaratory statement that offering the proposed
program at market tuition rate does not increase the state’s fiscal
liability or obligation.
7. An explanation of any differentiation in rate between resident and
non-resident students paying market tuition rate.
8. An explanation of any proposed restrictions, limitations, or
conditions to be placed on the program.
9. A description of any outcome measures that will be used to
determine the success of the proposal.
10. In addition, the following information will be included with the
proposal:
a. An explanation of how the university will ensure that sufficient
courses are available to meet student demand and facilitate
completion of each program submitted for consideration.
b. A baseline of current enrollments, including a breakout of
resident and nonresident enroliment, in similar state-funded
courses.
¢. An estimation of the economic impact that implementation of the
proposal will have on the university and the student by identifying
the incremental revenue the university anticipates collecting if the
proposal is approved.
d. A description of how revenues will be spent, including whether
any private vendors will be utilized, and which budget entity the
funds will be budgeted.

21



(d) The Board of Governors will act upon the budget committee
recommendation at the next scheduled meeting. If a university board of
trustees” proposal is denied, within five days, the university board of trustees
may request reconsideration by the Board’s Tuition Appeals Committee,
which shall consist of the Chair of the Board and the Chair of each Board
committee. The Tuition Appeals Committee will meet within ten days after
the Board of Governors’ denial to consider a university board of trustees
request for reconsideration.

(e) If a university charges a market tuition rate for a course within an
approved program, preference shall be given to Florida residents in the
admission process for similar state funded programs.

(f) Enrollments and degrees granted in market tuition rate program cohorts
shall be reported in a manner to be determined by the Chancellor.

(g) Credit hours generated by courses in market tuition rate program cohorts
shall not be reported as fundable credit hours and all costs shall be recouped
within the market tuition rate.

(h) Programs and associated courses approved for market tuition rate shall
not supplant existing university offerings funded by state appropriations.

(i) Each university approved to offer market tuition rates shall provide an
annual status report in a format designated by the Chancellor.

Authority: Section 7(d), Art. IX, Fla. Const.; History-Formerly BOR Rule 6C-
7.001, Adopted 4-8-79, Renumbered 12-16-74, Amended 6-28-76, 7-4-78, 8-6-79, 9-
28-81, 12-14-83, 7-25-84, 10-2-84, 10-7-85, Formerly 6C-7.01, Amended 12-25-86,
11-16-87, 10-19-88, 10-17-89, 10-15-90, 9-15-91, 1-8-92, 11-9-92, 7-22-93, 8-1-94, 11-
29-94, 4-16-96, 8-12-96, 9-30-97, 12-15-97, 8-11-98, 9-30-98, 8-12-99, 8-3-00, 8-28-00,
8-12-01, Amended and Renumbered as 7.001 09-25-08, Amended 12-10-09, 11-04-
10, 01-20-11.

22






STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
Budget and Finance Committee
June 23, 2011

SUBJECT: Regulation 7.003 - Fees, Fines & Penalties

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION

Approve public notice of intent to amend Regulation 7.003.

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF GOVERNORS ACTION

Article IX, Section 7, Florida Constitution and Board Regulation Development
Procedure

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

This regulation has been amended to codify several actions taken by the Board during
the March meeting and statutory changes made by the 2011 Legislature.

1. In March the Board approved the creation of several new university fees and an
increase to the orientation fee at the University of West Florida. These actions
have been added to the regulation.

2. During the Budget and Finance Committee deliberations in February and the full
Board discussion in March, members expressed that additional criteria be
included in the fee regulation that would guide the universities in the
development of new fees that are submitted for Board consideration. To that end,
the following criteria has been included:

a. The fee cannot be an extension of, or cover the same services, as an
existing statutory fee;

b. The fee cannot be utilized to create additional bonding capacity in an
existing fee;

c. The fee cannot be used to support services or activities that have been
paid for with education and general funds; and

d. The fee should support a service or activity in which a majority of
students is able to participate or from which derive a benefit.

3. Senate Bill 2150 authorizes a transient student fee not to exceed $5.00 per
distance learning course for accepting a transient student and processing the

23



student’s admissions application.

4. Senate Bill 2150 modifies the existing excess hour fee. All undergraduate
students entering for the first time in fall 2011 shall pay an excess hour fee equal
to 100 percent (was 50 percent) of the undergraduate tuition in excess of 115
percent (was 120 percent) of the number of credit hours required to complete the
baccalaureate degree.

These proposed changes have been shared with the universities.

Supporting Documentation Included: Regulation 7.003 - Fees, Fines & Penalties

Facilitators/Presenters: Tim Jones

24



7.003 Fees, Fines and Penalties,

(1) The Board of Governors must authorize all fees assessed to students.
Accordingly, the specific fees listed in this section, and the tuition and associated
fees defined in Regulation 7.001, are the only fees that may be charged for state
fundable credit hours without the specific approval of the Board, except as
authorized in Regulation 8.002. For purposes of clarification, the term "at cost” or
"cost" as used in this regulation includes those increased costs that are directly
related to the delivery of the goods, services, or programs,

(2) Each university board of trustees is authorized to assess the following fees at
the statutory amounts listed:

(a) Security / Access / Identification Card, Duplicate Security / Access /
Identification Card, Fee Card, or Passbook:

1. Annual - cost up to $10.00.
2. All duplicates - cost up to $15.00

(b) Orientation Fee - up to $35.00.

1. Effective fall 2011, the board of trustees of the Universitv of West
Florida may assess a $50 QOrientation Fee.

(c) Admissions Deposit - Up to $200. The admissions deposit shall be
imposed at the time of an applicant’s acceptance to the university and
shall be applied toward tuition upon registration and budgeted in the
Student and Other Fee Trust Fund. In the event the applicant does not
enroll in the university, the admissions deposit shall be budgeted in an
auxiliary account of the university and used to expand financial
assistance, scholarships, student academic and career counseling
services, and admission services at the university.

(d) Transcript Fee - per item; up to $10.00.

(e) Diploma Replacement Fee ~ per item; up to $10.00.

{f) Service Charge - up to $15.00 for the payment of tuition and fees in
installments.

(g) Audit Registration Fees -- Audit registration assures a course space for the
student; however, no grade is awarded. This fee is the same as the tuition
and associated fees provided in Regulation 7.001. Budgeting of fee
proceeds shall be in the Student and Other Fee Trust Fund.

(h) Registration of Zero Hours -- Such registration provides for examinations,
graduations, use of facilities, etc., when deemed appropriate by the
institution. The student is assessed tuition and associated fees for one
credit hour. The Zero Credit Fee shall be budgeted in the Student and
Other Fee Trust Fund.

(i) Application Fee -- Individuals who make application for admission to
universities within the State University System shall pay a non-refundable
Application Fee of not more than $30.00. The fee shall be budgeted in the

25



Student and Other Fee Trust Fund. Provisions may be made to waive the
application fee as specified by the university.

(j) Late Registration Fee -- Universities shall assess a Late Registration Fee to
students who fail to register before the end of the regular registration
period. This fee may also be assessed to students reinstated after their
course schedules were cancelled due to non-payment of fees. The fee shall
be not less than $50 nor more than $100 with a minimum of 50 percent
budgeted to the Student and Other Fee Trust Funds and the balance
budgeted in an Auxiliary Trust Fund. Provisions may be made to waive
the Late Registration Fee as specified by the university.

(k) Late Payment Fee -- Universities may assess a Late Payment Fee to
students who fail to pay, or make appropriate arrangements for payment
(installment payment, deferment, or third-party billing), of tuition and
associated fees by the deadline set by each university. The fee shall be not
less than $50 nor more than $100 with a minimum of 50 percent budgeted
to the Student and Other Fee Trust Fund and the balance budgeted in an
Auxiliary Trust Fund. Provisions may be made to waive the Late Payment
Fee as specified by the university.

(3) Before the Board's last meeting of each calendar year, the university board of
trustees shall notify the Board of any potential increases in fees outlined in sub-
paragraph (2). A university board of trustees may then submit a proposal for an
increase in that fee to the Board of Governors’ budget committee by January 15
for consideration by the committee during a February meeting.
(a) The proposal shall be submitted in a format designated by the Chancellor
and include at a minimum:
1. The current and proposed increase to the fee and a description of the
process used to determine the need for the increase, including any student
involvement.
2. The service or operation currently being funded by the fee.
3. An analysis of whether the service or operation can be performed more
efficiently to alleviate the need for any increase.
4. The additional or enhanced service or operation to be implemented.
5. Identification of other resources that could be used to meet this need.
6. The financial impact on students, including those with financial need.
7. The current revenue collected and expenditures from the current fee.
8. The estimated revenue to be collected and expenditures for the fee
increase.
(b} The Board will act upon the budget committee recommendation at the
next scheduled meeting.
{c) An increase in these fees can only be implemented with the fall term.
(d) Every five years the university board of trustees shall review the fee
increase to determine if the fee has met its intended outcomes and
whether the fee should be increased, decreased or discontinued. The

26



university board of trustees shall submit its findings to the Board. Any
subsequent decreases or continuation in these fees are delegated to the
university board of trustees, with notification to the Chancellor.

(4) Each university board of trustees is authorized to establish separate activity
and service, health, and athletic fees on the main campus, branch campus, or
center.

(a) The fees shall be retained by the university and paid into the separate
activity and service, health, and athletic funds. A university may transfer
revenues derived from the fees authorized pursuant to this section to a
university direct-support organization of the university pursuant to a
written agreement approved by the Board of Governors.

(b) The sum of the activity and service, health, and athletic fees a student is
required to pay to register for a course shall not exceed 40 percent of the
tuition. Within the 40 percent cap, universities may not increase the
aggregate sum of activity and service, health, and athletic fees more than 5
percent per year or the same percentage increase in tuition, whichever is
higher..

(c) A university may increase its athletic fee to defray the costs associated
with changing National Collegiate Athletic Association divisions. Any
such increase in the athletic fee may exceed both the 40 percent cap and
the 5 percent cap imposed by this subsection. Any such increase must be
approved by the athletic fee committee in the process outlined in
subparagraph (4)(d) and cannot exceed $2 per credit hour.

(d) Increases in the health, athletic, and activity and service fee must be
recommended by a fee committee, at least one-half of whom are students
appointed by the student body president. The remainder of the committee
shall be appointed by the university president. A chairperson, appointed
jointly by the university president and the student body president, shall
vote only in the case of a tie. The recommendations of the committee shall
take effect only after approval by the university president, after
consultation with the student body president, and approval by the
university board of trustees. An increase in these fees may occur only once
each fiscal year and must be implemented beginning with the fall term.

(e} The student activity and service fee shall be expended for lawful purposes
to benefit the student body in general. This shall include, but shall not be
limited to, student publications and grants to duly recognized student
organizations, the membership of which is open to all students at the
university without regard to race, sex, or religion. The fee may not benefit
activities for which an admission fee is charged to students, except for
student-government-association-sponsored concerts. The allocation and
expenditure of the fees shall be determined by the student government
association of the university, except that the president of the university
may veto any line item or portion thereof within the budget when

27



submitted by the student government association legislative body. The
university president shall have 15 school days from the date of
presentation of the budget to act on the allocation and expenditure
recommendations, which shall be deemed approved if no action is taken
within the 15 school days. If any line item or portion thereof within the
budget is vetoed, the student government association legislative body
shall within 15 school days make new budget recommendations for
expenditure of the vetoed portion of the fees. If the university president
vetoes any line item or portion thereof within the new budget revisions,
the university president may reallocate by line item that vetoed portion to
bond obligations guaranteed by activity and service fees.

(f) Unexpended fees and undisbursed fees remaining at the end of a fiscal
year shall be carried over and remain in the student activity and service
fund and be available for allocation and expenditure during the next fiscal
year.

(5) Technology Fee - Each university board of trustees may establish a
technology fee to be paid by all students. The fee may be up to 5 percent of the
tuition charged per credit hour. The revenue from this fee shall be used to
enhance instructional technology resources for students and faculty. The revenue
and expenditures shall be budgeted in the Local Fund budget entity.

(6) Off-Campus Educational Activities - As used herein, "off-campus" refers to
locations other than state-funded main campuses, branch campuses, or centers,
Each university board of trustees is authorized to establish fees for state fundable
off-campus course offerings when the location results in specific, identifiable
increased costs to the university. These fees will be in addition to the tuition and
associated fees charged to students enrolling in these courses on-campus. The
additional fees charged are for the purpose of recovering the increased costs
resulting from off-campus vis-a-vis on-campus offerings. The university shall
budget the fees collected for these courses to the Student and Other Fee Trust
Funds. Each university shall use the additional fees collected to cover the
increased cost of these courses and reimburse the appropriate Educational and
General fund, or other appropriate fund if the costs are incurred in other than
Educational and General funds.

(7) Material and Supply Fees - Each university board of trustees is authorized to
assess Material and Supply Fees not to exceed the amount necessary to offset the
cost of materials or supply items which are consumed in the course of the
student’s instructional activities, excluding the cost of equipment and equipment
repairs and maintenance. Revenues from such fees shall be budgeted in the
Auxiliary Trust Fund.

28



(8) Housing Rental Rates - Basic rates for housing rental shall be set by each
university board of trustees. In addition, the university board of trustees is
authorized to establish miscellaneous housing charges for services provided by
the university at the request of the students.

(9) Parking Fines, Permits and Decals -- Fach university board of trustees shall
establish charges for parking decals, permits and parking fines.

(10} Transportation Access Fee - Each university board of trustees is authorized
to establish a transportation access fee, with appropriate input from students, to
support the university’s transportation infrastructure and to increase student
access to transportation services.

{11) Returned Check Fee -- Each university board of trustees shall assess a service
charge for unpaid checks returned to the university,

(12) Collection costs -- Each university board of trustees is authorized to assess a
charge representing reasonable cost of collection efforts to effect payment for
overdue accounts. Amounts received for collection costs shall be retained by the
university.

(13) Service Charge -- Each university board of trustees is authorized to assess a
service charge on university loans in lieu of interest and administrative handling.

(14) Educational Research Center for Child Development Fee -- Each university
board of trustees is authorized to assess child care and service fees.

(15) Transient Student Fee - Each university board of trustees is authorized to
assess a fee not to exceed $5.00 per distance learning course for accepting a
transient student and processing the student’s admissions applicaion pursuant
to Section 1004.091.

(165) Building Fee ~ Each university board of trustees shall assess $2.32 per credit
hour per semester. No project proposed by a university which is to be funded by
this fee shall be submitted to the Board of Governors for approval without prior
consultation with the student government association of that university.

(176} Capital Improvement Fee - Each university board of trustees shall assess
$2.44 per credit hour per semester, No project proposed by a university which is
to be funded by this fee shall be submitted to the Board of Governors for
approval without prior consultation with the student government association of
that university.

29



i (187) Student Financial Aid Fee - Each university board of trustees is authorized
to collect for financial aid purposes an amount not to exceed 5 percent of the
tuition and out-of-state fee. The revenues from fees are to remain at each
university. A minimum of 75 percent of funds from the student financial aid fee
shall be used to provide financial aid based on demonstrated financial need.
Each university shall report annually to the Board of Governors on the revenue
collected pursuant to this subsection, the amount carried forward, the criteria
used to make awards, the amount and number of awards for each criterion, and
a delineation of the distribution of such awards. The report shall include an
assessment by category of the financial need of every student who receives an
award, regardless of the purpose for which the award is received. Awards which
are based on financial need shall be distributed in accordance with the federal
methodology for determining need. An award for academic merit shall require a
minimum overall grade point average of 3.0 on a 4.0 scale or the equivalent for
both initial receipt of the award and renewal of the award.

(198) Each university board of trustees is authorized to assess the following fees
which will have varied amounts:
{a) Development Research School Fees ~ activity fees which shall be
discretionary with each university.
(b) Library Fines - per book or unit, per day; the funds shall be budgeted to
the Student and Other Fee Trust Fund.
{c) Overdue Reserve Library books - per book, per library hour; the funds
shall be budgeted to the Student and Other Fee Trust Fund.
(d) Late Equipment Fee, Physical Education - per item, per day.
(e) Fees and fines relating to the use, late return, and loss and damage of
facilities and equipment.
(f) Distance Learning Fee.

(2039) Each university board of trustees is authorized to assess reasonable fees
for incidental non-academic services provided directly to individuals. This could
include, but not be limited to, fees for duplicating, lost keys, copyright material,
breakage, standardized tests, library loans.

(218) Each university board of trustees is authorized to assess an international
student service fee to cover the university costs associated with reporting
requirements of the Student and Exchange Visitor Information System
administered by the Department of Homeland Security for F-Visa and ]-Visa
degree seeking students.

(223) Excess Hour Fee —An-undergraduate studentshall- pay-an-excesshour-fee
3 o . < CJ

croita

30



enroled--This fee shall be budgeted in the Student and Other Fee Trust Fund.

(a) This-provision-is-effectivefor Aell state university undergraduate
students who entered a postsecondary undergraduate program at any
Florida public institution of higher education for the first time in fall
2009 or thereafter and prior to fall 2011 shall pay an excess hour fee
equal to 50 percent of the undergraduate tuition identified in
Regulation 7.001(3) for each credit hour in excess of 120 percent of the
number of credit hours required to complete the baccalaureate degree
program in which the student is enrolled ex-thercafter,

(b) All state university undergraduate students who entered a
postsecondary undergraduate program at any Florida public
institution of higher education for the first time in fall 2011 or
thereafter shall pav an excess hour fee equal to 100 percent of the
undergraduate tuition identified in Regulation 7.001(3) for each credit
houyr in excess of 115 percent of the number of credit hours required to
complete the baccalaureate degree program in which the student is
enrolled.

(cb) Each university shall implement a process for notifying students of
this fee upon a student’s initial enrollment. A second notice must be
provided to the student when the student has attempted the number of
credit hours needed to complete the baccalaureate degree program in
which the student is enrolled. The second notice must include a
recommendation that each student who intends to earn credit hours at
the university in excess of the credit hours required for the
baccalaureate degree program in which the student is enrolled meet
with the student’s academic advisor.

(de) All credit hours for courses taken at the university from which the
student is seeking a baccalaureate degree shall be included when
calculating the number of hours taken by a student, including:

1. Failed courses.

2. Courses dropped or withdrawn from after the university’s
advertised last day of the drop and add period, except as provided
for in subparagraph (22%)(ed).

3. Repeated courses, except repeated courses for which the student
has paid the full cost of instruction as provided in Regulation
7.001(11).

4. All credit hours earned at another institution and accepted for
transfer by the university and applied toward the student’s
baccalaureate degree program.

(ed) All credit hours earned under the following circumstances shall not
be calculated as hours required to earn a baccalaureate degree:

1. College credits earned through an articulated accelerated
mechanism.

31



2. Credit hours earned through internship programs.

3. Credit hours required for certification, recertification, or
certificate programs.

4. Credit hours in courses from which a student must withdraw
due to reasons of medical or personal hardship.

5. Credit hours taken by active-duty military personnel.

6. Credit hours required to achieve a dual major taken while
pursing a baccalaureate degree.

7. Remedial and English as a Second Language credit hours.

8. Credit hours earned in military science courses that are part of
the Reserve Officers’ Training Corps program.

| (232) Convenience fee - Each university board of trustees may establish a
convenience fee when accepting payments by credit cards, charge cards, and
debit cards. The fee shall not be greater than the cost of providing the service.
The fee is not refundable to the payor.

| (243) Before the Board's last meeting of each calendar year, the university board
of trustees shall notify the Board of any potential new fees that are being
considered by the university. A university board of trustees may then submit a
proposal for a new fee not currently authorized in Board regulation or statute to
the Board of Governors’ budget committee by January 15 for consideration by
the committee during a February meeting.
(a) The proposal shall be submitted in a format designated by the
Chancellor, and include at a minimum:
1. The purpose to be served or accomplished with the fee.
2. The demonstrable student-based need for the fee that is currently
not being met through existing university services, operations or
another fee.
3. The process used to assure substantial student input or
involvement.
4. Any proposed restrictions, limitations, or conditions to be placed
on the fee.
5. The financial impact of the fee on students, including those with
financial need.
6. The estimated revenue to be collected and proposed
expenditures for the new fee.
7. The outcome measures that will be implemented to determine
when the purpose of the fee will be accomplished.
(b) The aggregate sum of any fees approved by the Board that a student is
required to pay to register for a course shall not exceed 10 percent of
tuition. All other fees shall be based on cost.
(c) The fee can only be implemented in the fall term.



(d) The revenue generated by this fee may not be transferred to an
auxiliary enterprise or a direct-support organization and may not be used
to pay or secure debt,

(e) The university shall account for the revenue and detailed expenditures
of this fee in the Annual Report.

(f) The fee cannot be an extension of, or cover the same services, as an
existing statutory fee.

{g) The fee cannot be utilized to create additional bonding capacity in an
existing fee.

(h) The fee cannot be used to support services or activities that have been
paid for with education and general funds.

(i) The fee should support a service or activity in which a majority of
students is able to participate or from which derive a benefit.

() Once the Board approves a fee under this section, a university fee
committee shall be established similar to other existing fee committees.
(kg) The Board will act upon the budget committee recommendation at
the next scheduled meeting.

(k) Bvery five years the university board of trustees shall review the fee
to determine if the fee has met its intended outcomes and whether the fee
should be increased, decreased or discontinued. The university board of
trustees shall submit its findings to the Board. Any subsequent decreases
or continuation in these fees are delegated to the university board of
trustees, with notification to the Chancellor.

(mh) If a university board of trustees’ proposal is denied, within five days
the university board of trustees may request reconsideration by the
Board’s Tuition Appeals Committee, which shall consist of the Chair of
the Board and the Chair of each Board committee. The Tuition Appeals
Committee will meet within ten days after the Board of Governors denial
to consider a university board of trustees request for reconsideration.

(25) Pursuant to subparagraph (24), the university boards of trustees desienated
below are authorized to assess the following fees:
(a) Green Fee - This fee mav be assessed to establish or improve the use of
renewable energv technologies or enerey efficiencies that lower the
university’s greenhouse emissions.
1. University of South Florida: up to $1.00 per credit hour
2. New College of Florida: up to $1.00 per credit hour
(b} Test Preparation Fee ~ at cost. This fee may be assessed to increase
accessibility to test preparation courses in proerams where students are
expected to obtain specific preparation for a practice-based examination.
1. Florida International University
{c) Student Life and Services Fee — This fee may be assessed to expand
student participation in transformational learning opportunities that build

33



new and enhances oneoine activities which connect students to the
mstitution.
1. University of North Florida: not to exceed 5 percent of tuition.

Authority: Section 7(d), Art. IX, Fla. Const.; History-Formerly BOR Rule 6C-
7.003. Derived from 6C-2.74 and 6C-2.76, Amended and Renumbered 12-17-74,
Amended 2-22-76, 6-22-76, 6-28-76, 11-1-76, 9-8-77, 2-14-79, 9-28-81, 12-7-82, 12-
13-83, 10-2-84, Formerly 6C-7.03, Amended 1-8-86, 8-11-86, 12-25-86, 6-2-87, 10-
17-89, 4-10-90, 1-7-91, 7-2-91, 9-15-91, 8-4-92, 11-9-92, 4-12-93, 5-30-93, 9-23-93, 8-1-
94, 1-24-96, 4-16-96, 12-15-97, 8-28-00, 8-12-01, Amended and Renumbered as
7.003 9-25-08, Amended 12-10-09, 11-04-10.

34



STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
Budget and Finance Committee
June 23, 2011

SUBJECT: Collegiate License Plate Revenue Expenditure Plans

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION

Consider approval of expenditure plans for funds received from the sale of collegiate
license plates for Florida Gulf Coast University and New College of Florida, and a
revised plan for Florida A&M University.

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF GOVERNORS ACTION

Article IX, Section 7, Florida Constitution and Section 320.08058(3), Florida Statutes

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Section 320.08058(3)(b), Florida Statutes, states that the Board of Governors shall require
each state university to submit a plan for approval of the expenditure of all revenues
collected from the sale of collegiate license plates. The funds may only be used for
academic enhancement, including scholarships and private fundraising activities.
During fiscal year 2009-10 over $6.3 million was generated from the sale of collegiate
license plates for the universities.

Gross Revenues
FAMU $519,550
FAU $63,175
FGCU $41,525
FIU $72,325
FSU $1,814,225
NCF $18,050
UCF $374,575
UF $2,925,750
UNEF $44,750
USF $412,069
UWF $45,500

35



On March 15, 1996 the Board of Regents approved expenditure plans for nine

universities. These expenditure plans indicated the percentage of funds that would be

expended for scholarships, fundraising and academic enhancements. These plans
would be in effect indefinitely unless the university wished to deviate from the

approved plan,
Scholarships | Fundraising | Academic Enhancement
FAMU 85% 15%
FAU 75% 25%
FIU 75% 25%
FSU 18% 82%
UCF* 20% 30% 50%
UF 60% 40%
USF 20% 66% 14%
UNF 70% 30%
UWF 100%

*UCF’s expenditure plan was modified in March, 2002.

A review of the records shows that Florida Gulf Coast University and New College of

Florida expenditures plans have not been officially approved in accordance with

statute. The following represents the percent these two institutions have been spending

on these activities:

Scholarships | Fundraising | Academic Enhancement
FGCU 100%
NCF 50% 10% 40%

On February 10, 2011, the Florida A&M University Board of Trustees approved a
modification to their expenditure plan:

Scholarships | Fundraising | Academic Enhancement
FAMU - Current 85% 15%
FAMU - Proposed 25% 75%

Supporting Documentation Included: 1. March, 1996 Board of Regents action

2. Florida Gulf Coast University letter
3. New College of Florida letter
4. Florida A&M University letter

Facilitators/Presenters: Tim Jones



STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA

325 Wesi Gaines Swreat. Tallafiasses, Florida 323991950

March 21, 1986

MEMORANDTIUM

TO: Members, Council of Preside
FROM: Charles B. Reaed ?ié&awﬂfﬁg
SUBJECY: Collegiate License Plate Program

This 1s to advise ‘that the Bcard of Regents, at its
meeting on March 15, 1996, approved the use of Collegiate
License Plate funds as depicted on the attached
Supplemental Agenda Item 12 and Certificate of the
Secretary. Pursuant to Chancellor‘s Memorandum 8B-05.1,
this approval will remain in effect indefinitely.
Submission of a revised expenditure plan will be required
only if the university wighes to deviate from the
approved plan.

CBR/dgs
Attachmant

cc: University Foundation Directors

AN EQUAL ACCESS/OPPORTUNITY—AFFIFIMATIVE ACTION SYSTEM
Universite of Flovide ® Flovida State Universire © Florida A&M Utiversics ® Universire af South Floridg & Florida Atlartic University

Crainesvilie Talluhassee Tallahassee Tampe Boca Raton
Liversity af West Flovida » Unjversioe af Centead Flavide ® Florids fiermational Liniversite @ Uaiversity of Nostih Floride ® Florida Guif Coarr University
Ponsacols Crfaidin Miame Joeksonuilie Ft. Myers

37



SUPPLEMENTAL ITEM; 1=

BOARD OF REGENTS
March 15, 1856

SUBJECT: BApproval of Collegiate License Plate Revenue Expenditure
Plans

ROR COMMITTEER REVIEW: Finance/Facilities
CNIVERSITIES AFFRECTED: ALl Except FGCU

FROPOSEDR BOARD ACTION

hpprove expenditure plans for funds received from the szls of
Collegiate Licenze Plates azz outlined on the attachment,

EACEGROUND ITHNPORMATION
Pursuant to Section 320,08058, Florida Statutes, revenues received
from the sale of Collegiate License Plataes shall be utilized for
academic enhancement purposes, including scholarships and fund-
raising activities, as approved by the Board of Regesnts. Since
Florida Statutes stipulate the type of activities for which
Coliegiate License Plate revenues can be utilized, the Board ccould
approve a continuing plan that meets the statutory requirements.
Such approval would eliminate paperwork and make Collegiate License
Plate revenuss avallable for use by the universities immediately
upon the receipt of funds from the Department of Highway Safety and
Motor Vehicles. The attached summary reflects each university's
proposed expenditure plan for the use of funds for which expenditure
plans have not been previously approved. The universities propose
to utilize these revenues as outlined in statute. Future
expenditure plans will be submitted for Board of Regents approval
only if the university wishes to deviate from the approved plan. Aasg
indicated on the summary, some universities are proposing to utilize
a large portion or all of their available funde on fund-raising

activities.

Supporting Documentation Included: Summary of University Plans
Other Support Documents Available: Individual Universitv Flans
Legal Review Reguired: Yes No X
EEO Iwmpact Studies Regquived: Yes No X
Councll Review: N/n Date Submitted: 3/04/96
Prepared by: Ron Stubbs/Bob Henker Phone: 204/488-6370

o ﬂ) 8C 27B-6270
Submitted by: Carl W. Blackwell [ w 'h Phonea: 964/487-0862

5C  277-0Bgz2

38



STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA

123 West Gaines Streer. Tallahassee, Floride 32309-7050

March 19, 1996

FLORIDA BOARD OF REGENTS

CERTIFICATE OF THE SECRETARY

I, Mary-Anne Bestebreurtje, Corporate Secretry of the Florida Board of Regents,
do hereby certify that the Florida Board of Regents at a meeting on March 15,
1996, authorized each university to utilize Collegiate License Plate Revenues as

defined in ltem 12 of the Amended Agenda.

?]f&?\ﬂ Ay (A)/\&wwu ﬁ’(}% CRVEIN

MaryaA@a Bestebreurtic
Corporate Secretary

In witness thereof, I have
hereunto set my hand and
seal this 19th day of March,
1966

AN EQUAL ACCESS/OPFORTUNITY ~AFFIRMATIVE ACTION SYSTEM

Universitg of Finvige © Flosid Smre Universite © Flovida A&M University ® University of Seuth Florids © Floride Atiantic University
Gaineseifle Telfchsaer Talighusser Tampm Bocu Raren

tinfversity of West Fluride ® Unteorsite af Cratrald Flewisde ® Flovida Iederaarionad Universite & Univer winv of North Floride = Floride Gulf Cousr Universine

Pearsiterilte {irdeains Micesni Jackvonyidie Fr. Myers

39



SOOUS/EE ST NYIdLID

9664 3 AHW SALDRIAT
FNOIHE THM VORIO T TWHINGD S0 ALSHAAIND SHI 04 NV 1d GHE SSNYTd HHNLIGNTAXE HADEY JHL 04 NOLGIOXT NV (510N

YOOV Frtlel 3 LNGWIONVHNG DIaBavDY
YB0'0E %0057 %0008 %00'00t OO GE %0095

%O0'gL %0028 %He00r ONISIVHONNZ

%000L H0'GL ﬁwg.udm %0052 %00°0Z %00°68 %008 %0009

SHHSHVIOHOS
L [i1E] 30 JRn fivd 487 i3

2] ElH

S66L 'F NP HILAY OBAIRDHY SENNIATY
OGNy
TVAOUAY U GILLRANS AISNOIATY 108 BIONYIVE Tvnaisay
SANNIATY 3LV 14 ISNTOTT HLVISETION
9861 'F1 HOWVIN IALLOT 44T
SNV Id SUNUGNIIXT ALISHIAINN
WILGAS ALISHIAINN ALVYLS

40



FLORIDA

GULFCOAST Foundation
UNIVERSITY

May 31, 2011

Mr. Tim Jones

Chief Financial Officer

State University System of Florida
Board of Governors

325 West Gains Street
Tallashassee, Florida 32399

Dear Tim:

Please accept this letter as an official declaration that Florida Gulf Coast University Foundation, Ine, uses
one hundred percent of its license plate revenue for scholarships, The Foundation has always used
these funds for scholarships and plans to continue this practice.

If you need any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me directly.

Sincerely,

~-»6/i3€m L %MW
G

Steve L. Magiera CPA, MS
Executive Director
Florida Gulf Coast University Foundation, Inc.

10501 FGCU Bivd, South » Fort Myers, Florida 33965-6565  (239) 590-1067  Fax: (239) 590-1070  hep/iwwwifgeu.edu

An Affirmative Action Equal Opporwnity Employer « A member of the State University System of Florida

41



New Corrser FounpaTion, Inc,

September 10, 2610

Mr. John Frady, Senior Budget Analyst

State University System of Florida Board of Governors
325 West Gaines Street, Suite 1652

Tallahasgee, FI 32369-0400

Re: New College Foundation License Plate funds spending policy
Dear Mr. Frady:

New College Foundation, Inc. and New College of Florida have set a spending policy for license
plate proceeds as follows:

Scholarship funding 50%
Academic Enhancements 40%
Fundraising 18%

Sincerely, {
%&b%& S L

Barbara A. Brostus
Vice President, Finance

"The Kearing Center * 5800 Bay Shore Road = Sarasora, FL 34243 » T 941.487.4800 = T 941 487 4630 o foundarion.ncfedu

42



Floviva Agricultural oy Mechaical Mniversity

TAtLAMARSES, FLomiDa 32307-3100

Ianges B Asmaons, Ph.D., Presipest

Sxidinre WG Carivg

CIFFTCE O8F TEE PREATENT s (R B0 325
S 56§ ks
v (BED $81.2Y6d

March 2, 2011

Mg Kristie Harris

Director of University Budpets
Beard of Governors

State University System of Florida
325 West Gaines Street
Tailahassee, FI, 32390-0400

Dear My, Harris:
This is to wform you that effective February 10, 2011, the Florids A& M Unjversity Board of

Trustees approved changing the allocation of revenues received from Collogiate License Plate
fees. Below i a summary of the reallocations:

Previous Allocations: Revised Allocations (Kffective 2/10/2011%
85% - Scholarships 25% - Scholarships
15% - Fundraising | 75% - Fundraising

This action is pursusnt to Section 320.08058 of the Florida Statues. If you have any questions or
concerns, 1 may be reached at (850) 599-3225.

Sincerely,

Wﬁim

Jameas H, Anunons

President O
N

CC: o Carla 5. Willis, Vies President, Univer sity Relations, Florida A&M University J;{WL\
Frank Brogan, Chancellor, State University System of Flovida ,
deanctte Collins, Flotida Deparinent of Motor Vehicles ?W:)

P
A
La¥
i

FaMU S AN BOUAL OPPORTONITY/BOUAL ACCESS UNTVEREITY






STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA
BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Budget and Finance Committee
June 23, 2011

SUBJECT: Florida International University Self-Insurance Program Investment Policy

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION

Approve Florida International University Self-Insurance Program Investment Policy.

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF GOVERNORS ACTION

Article IX, Section 7, Florida Constitution and Board Regulation 10.001

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Pursuant to Board Regulation 10.001, the Florida International University Board of
Trustees has adopted an Investment Policy to define the management process for
capturing investment opportunities and to establish parameters by which the FIU Sel{-
Insurance Program Council will exercise its fiduciary responsibility and oversight for
the prudent investment of funds held by the FIU Self-Insurance Program in an
investment custody account. '

The Investment Policy creates an Investment Committee comprised of no less than three
members appointed by the Council, the University Chief Financial Officer, the
University Treasurer, and the Executive Associate Dean for Finance and Administration
for the Wertheim College of Medicine. All members must possess demonstrable
knowledge and experience with financial investments and portfolio management. The
Investment Policy delineates the Investment Committee’s responsibilities and
establishes the parameters for defining and disclosing a substantial existing or potential
contlict of interest and providing for the Council to determine the appropriate action to
take in light of the conflict.

The Investment Policy also establishes investment guidelines consistent with the
statutory investment criteria set forth in Section 215.47, Florida Statutes.

Supporting Documentation Included: FIU SIP Investment Policy

Facilitators/Presenters: Vikki Shirley

44






FROREE | FLORIDA
FEU | INTERNATIONAL
: - UNIVERSITY

FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY
HERBERT WERTHEIM COLLEGE OF MEDICINE
SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAM
INVESTMENT POLICY

APPROVED AS OF FEBRUARY 3, 2010

The Florida International University Self-Insurance Program Council (“Counci!”) is responsible
for the oversight and approval of the overall investment policy and investment portfolio of the
Florida International University Self-Insurance Program ("FIUSIP™). The intent of this policy is
to define the management process for capturing investment opportunities as they may occur and
to set forth reasonable parameters to ensure prudence and care in the execution of the investment
program, in accordance with applicable law.

I. Governance: Definition of the Fund

A.

Investment of assets of the FIUSIP shall be governed by a SIP Investment
Committee (the “Investment Committee”™) of the Council which shall have
responsibility for FIUSIP investments and the aliocation thereof. The Council
may, in its discretion, serve as the Investment Committee until such time as the
Council deems it prudent to constitute an Investment Committee.

The Investment Committee shall consist of no less than three members appointed
by the Council. The Council shall select the Chairperson of the Invesiment
Committee, In addition to the appointed Investment Committee members, the
University Chief Financial Officer, University Treasurer, and Executive Associate
Dean for Finance & Administration, Wertheim College of Medicine shaill be ex
officio members of the Investment Committee. Investment Committee members
need not be members of the Council, provided that such members have
demonstrable knowledge, experience and familiarity with financial investments
and portfolio mariagement.

For purposes of this Investment Policy document, monies available for investment
(bereinafter referred to as the “Fund™) means an amount equal to the sum derived
when, at any given time, the amount of cash in FIUSIP’s investment custody
account is added to an amount equal to the fajr market value of all securities held
in the investment custody account of the FIUSIP on behalf of the FIUSIP.

Page 1 of 5

45



11

Investment Committee Resnonsibilities and Procedures:

Al

The Investment Committee, with the guidance and recommendations of its
advisors and consultants, shall be responsibie for:

1.

ta

Meeting as needed, but no less than once per fiscal vear, at the discretion
of the Chair of the Council or Chair of the Investment Committee, to
review the manner in which the Fund is invested, with outcomes of said
meetings to be reported to the Council;

Reviewing the implementation of this Investment Policy at least once each
fiscal year and recommending to the Council any changes in investment
strategy:

Investing the Fund in conformance with this Investment Policy as
approved by the Council. The Investment Committee shall have no power
in any way to modify, alter, add to, or subtract from any provisions of this
Investment Policy as approved by the Council;

Ensuring that the objectives stated in the Investment Policy are pract:ca]
and reflect the mission of the FIUSIP:

Recommending the engagement of investment advisors, consuitants,
managers, and/or custodians for the approval of the Council andjor
recommending the termination of such advisors, consultants, managers or
custodians that fail to maintain acceptable quantitative (e.g. risk/return
profile} and/or qualitative (e.g. organizational changes) standards;

Implementing and monitoring the asset allocation targets;
Determining whether the investment objectives set forth herein are being
met and whether the investment guidelines and applicable law are being

followed;

Providing regular performance reports to the Couneil.

The staff, as assigned by the Council in consultation with the University, is an
integral part of the day to day requirements of the operating portfolio. The staff
has the responsibility of administering and coordinating the implementation
decisions made by the Investment Committee and the Council. The staff is
responsible for:

1.

Administering the investments of the Fund at the lowest possible cost,
being careful to avoid sacrificing quality;

Executing the rebalancing procedures, as necessary;

Page 2 of 5

46



3. Maintaining day-to-day inferaction with the investment advisors,
consultants, managers, and custodians.

No member of the Investment Committee shall have or appear to have a material
personal interest, either directly or indirectly, in conflict with the interests of
FIUSIP, unless such interest is disclosed and approved as provided herein. In the
event any member of the Investment Committee should have any conflict of
interest, he or she shall disclose such conflict to the Council and, if so directed by
the Council, shall abstain from voting or acting on matters involving the conflict.
The Council shall decide what action, if any, te take in light of the conflict of
interest. Such action may, but is not required to, include accepting the individual’s
abstention, requiring the individual to terminate the conflict of interest, or causing
the individual’s appointment to the Investment Commitiee to be terminated.

A member of the Investment Committee shall be deemed o have a possible or
actual conflict if he or she has a substantial existing or potential personal interest
in a matter which impairs or might appear (o impair the member’s ability to
exercise independent and unbiased judgment in the good faith discharge of his or
her duties to FIUSIP,

In addition to limitation on conflicts of interest, no member of the Investment
Committee, nor a business entity of which the member is also an officer, director,
employee, or substantial owner, shall enter into a transaction with the FIUSIP
uniess such transaction is disclosed fully to the Council. The Council must
approve the transaction by a vote of three-fourths (3/4) of all Council members.
The Council’s determination regarding any transaction that may constitute a
conflict of interest must be consistent with applicable Florida law including
Chapter 112 of the Florida Statutes. ‘

The mere employment by an officer or employee of FIUSIP or member of the
[nvestment Conumittee by the Florida International University Board of Trustees
or any of its component or supporting organizations, or by an insured entity of the
FIUSIP, shall not constitute a conflict of interest.

The Council will, to the extent legally permissible indemnify and hold harmless
each member of the Investment Comumitiee from all actions, proceedings, claims,
or demands by any persons, corporations, associations, or entities whatsoever in
which such person may be involved by reason of his or her service on the
Investment Committee, and will indemnify and hold harmless each member of the
Investment Committee against all costs, damages, or expenses which the
Investment Committee member may pay, sustain, or incur by reason or in
consequence of such service; provided, however, such member was exercising
due care and diligence in the performance of his or her duties on behalf of the
FIUSIP, and provided that no settlement shall be entered into without the prior
consultation and approval of the Council.

Page3 of 5

47



v.

E. The investment advisors, consultants, managers, and custodians shall:

i

E‘-J

Recommend to the Investment Committee changes in investment
objectives, policies, and procedures;

Make purchases and sales of securities in accordance with the Investment
Policy; and

Report their respective activities to the Investment Committee and in such
manner and in such frequency as may be requested, from time to time, by
the Investment Committee.

Investment Oblectives

The overall investment objective of the Fund is to achieve a favorable rate of return, in
combiration with preservation of principal and liquidity, subject to the quality,
diversification, and maturity restrictions imposed by the investment guidelines contained
in this Investment Policy and all Florida Statutes cited herein.

Investment Guidelines

A Investment of the Fund shall be governed by the following investment guidelines,
consistent with Chapter 215.47:

L.

The Fund may be mvested with no limitation in any security described in
Section 215.47(1), Florida Statutes,

Subject to the investtment percentage limitations described therein, the
Fund may be invested in the securities described in Section 215.47(2), (3),
{4), (3), and (6).

All holdings of investment will be of sufficient size in issues actively
traded to ensure marketability and liquidity to facilitate transactions at
minimum cost and to permit accurate market valuation.

All purchases and sales of securities will be executed by the Investment
Committee or its agent(s) at the most advantageous price to the Fund with
principal dealers in the particular securities being purchased or sokd.

The investment performance of the Fund shall be measured in terms of
total return against appropriate benchmarks or market indices having the
same investment characteristics and guidelines as the Fund. In the
evaluation of performance no distinction shall be made between realized
and unrealized returns or between the income and capital components of
total return of the Fund,

Page 4 of 5

48



6.

Consistent with the foregoing, the Investment Commitice may adopt any
such additional guidelines and/or objectives it may deem necessary or
appropriate to fulfill its fiduciary resposnsibilities.

Page 5 of 5

49



